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{7, “DESCRIPTION: " o7

. . . : (Check_One) . .
CONGITION 7] Excellent . [d Good O Feir O Dotericratad D Ruins (7] Unoxposed
K {Check Oag) 7 ) D . (Check One)- . N
G_ Altered [ Unaltered T 7] Moved . [X} Original Site

DESCRIDE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE ; .

The Bristol County'Jéil; a pable-roofed, two—and-é—halféstofied,‘;

' stone-walled structure, was built in 1828 to replace an earlier jail

erected in 1792 on the same site. Iis five-bay-wide front faces north -
on the sidewalk line of narrow Court Street and measures 36t-5" wide by

hét-L" deep. In 1859, a two-story addition to the rear, or south, and "
s1lightly offset to the east side, was constructed; this is built of .

rocof. : ' .
: . A \

. When the new jailhouse was'built ‘the strictest regard for economy
was observed hy those appointed hy the General Asserbly to supervise .
its comstruction, and it cost onlly $3,700. The exterior of this rubble-
structure presents a severe appearance and is devold of any detail or '

pranite, measures 20'-0" wide by‘h3'¥2ﬁ deep, and is capped by a flati:*

. embellishment. Much of the material of the formar 1792 jailhouse was

re-used (for example, its old red cedar ‘claphoards that were still in
rood condition were split and used as laths for the new building).

If the 1859 rear addition is_ioday taken as an integral part of
the fabric, one can say.that exterior alterations have teen of a minor-

nature. The appearance of the deeply-recessed Greek Revival front ent-
rance has heen changed, within the recess, and has newer doors and tran-

scmy- a bracketed wooden.Victorian hoed has also been extended over the -

sidewalk. On the east side is the original kitchen entrance, a simple ™

rectangular opening recessed into the 21”—p§ck stone wall. The rear

" entrance of the 1828 building is original; it has a fanlight and is "~

also recessed. Excepting for one second-story window of the 1828

“5buildiﬁg}fit%)original twelve-over-eight and twelve-over twelve sashes.:
were changed (préohably at the same time 'that the alteration-to the front.

entrance was made) tc those of two-over-two Victorian type. The east-»

ernmost of the two original internal brick chimneys in the .older portion
. of the building was removed to first-floor level during alterations by ..
the Bristol Historical Society in 1959. Coen e

H

The basic floor plan exhibits a symmetrical, central—héll,-tﬁreé?¥

room-deep arrangement with the two internal chimneys occurring at the <.

centers of the divisions between front-and middle rooms. The first-

‘floor hail (like that above) originally ran from the front entrance to |
the rear door of the building. The stairway, with its moderately-sized .
turned newel and square talusters, was contained within this hall; the .
. stair runs.from-the hack to the front to reach the second floor and is o 7L
‘placed close to the rear of the building. As the first floor was used® Ll 7
as the jailer's living-quarters and offices and the cells were located .|’
upstairs, such an arrangement was perhaps deemed a tetter means of se=+ "

curity, as prisoners could be received by means of the back entrance.
The rear, kitchen, and cellar doors were all, and are still, protected:
by iron bars, while’the front-entrance, which probably once,had‘Greek_\‘

Revival.sidelights, was-probtably felt to be less sgpureﬁf. T
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Description.

The three YOOWS\OD the wésf side of the first floor are believed to

. have been used by the jailer and his family as their. living-quarters--—

the front room serving as parlour, the center one as dining room, the
rearmost as kitchen. These rooms were accessible toseach other en suite,
while toth front parlour and dining room also had doorways ooenlng into
the hall. The present doorway hetween the kitchen and the foot of the
stairway in the hall was installed in 1959, Both the front parlour, now
used as a research room by the Bristol Historical and Preservation Soci-

" ety, and the dining room, now its library, retain their original fire- -

places, closets, and nlneaboard floors.. The front room exhibits its ori-
ginal run-moulded wainscot which at each window forms the sill nosing and
aoron. The sides of all the first-floor windows are splayed inward and .

plastered, the sash ¥eing set at the outside face of the stone walls A‘J5 B
“connacting paSSape between thcso two rooms . has now tegn made a lavatory

The three smaces on the east side of the first floor are belleved
0 have been used by the jailer in his daily work. The front room--the - .
largest on this floor--probably served.as a publlc reception roomy while® -

the middle room was the jailer!s private office. The back room was very

narrow and was perhaps oripinally used for filing records or for storage.
Both the public and private offices had fireplaces and wide-board floors;
th,east front room had a moulded wainscot identical to that in the front
“room .on the opposité side of the hall. When the Bristol Historical Soci- -
ety moved into the tuilding {(after its abandonment.as a jail by the State

"~ of Rhode Island in June, 1957) a meeting-svace was required for iis- memfh‘{f

bership, and partitions which' formerly separated the three east rooms

from each other .and from- the central hall were removed to create one lafne~f R

ﬁrea.

The second floor, as originally designed, served in part as a de-

" tention section, while the two front chambers, one to each side of the .
full-length-central hall, are thought to have teen bedrooms for the jailer -

and his family. The chamber to the west of the hall is the 'same size as .

';the front varlour relow, while the chamrer opposite is only half the size

of the former public reception room downstairs. The larger of these two'
rooms is quite elegant in its simplicity, with its original wainscot and
cornice of run mouldings, to the . .left of .its fireplace is a closet. A1l
finished spaces on. thls f100r exhlblt beaded baseboards and wido-board,_
floors. ; : : S
The middle room on the west, 51de of the second floor was nrobably,-
a low-gsecnrity cell area, as irndicated by the two windows which are set
flush with the inside face of the thick stone walls. Markings of the ori-

minal exterlor 1r0n bars -can be seen in- the massive pranlte 31115. As th1°

L} o

(See Contlnuatlon Sheet 2 )

gro satarra .

D L B e s e e T T ey A e S SR

L

gt Pt

TS e AT TR T

Lo R

O3]

TER A

b A e T A e R R

e O

TG

T

i g

=g STy

v g



-

+ Form 16-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR [state
Luly 1959) o : NAHONALPARKSERWCE Rhode Island

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES - |GounTY

Bristol
1NVENTORY NOMINATiON FORM T OR NPS USE OnLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Contmuatron Sheet)-2 " ‘

(Number all entries) .

7. Description.

room is now quite large (13'-2" wide hy 20'-6" deep), it may originally
have teen subdivided into two cells. Located arove the original dining’
room and a vortion of the kitchen, this space contains a fireplace and - -
closet and an access=-nrorahly not oripginal--to a small hall to the rear
of the huilding which contains the enclosed attic stair and which is also
acce851hlp by an orlplnal door from the main hall. e

Because of an added partmtlon btetween the east front tedroom and-
adjacent cell, there now exist four basic spaces on the east side of the-
second [leoor, rather than the typical three. The two middle rooms, bi--
sected by the former chimney wall, were used as medium-security cells.

over-&ight:sash and hinged interior steel shutters as well as its original
steel-reinforced door and simple mantel. o o L

ot

the south-east corrner of the second flcor. ‘Framed in wood, with the ex--.
ception of the exterior stone walls andiiron doors, these cells and their "
~ante-hall exist today as built.in 1828. - There are no provisions'for

some in the basement, are relieved to be ‘salvage from the 1792 jail, and .
their wweight is borne bty a solid hrick wall, two-feet-th1c< at the
first-floor level and additionally supported by a fieldstone wall in the
- celiar. (The brick wall which formerly separated the middle and rear
- spaces on this side of the first floor has since heen removed and the-
weight above re-supported by steel beams.) While front and west exterlor
walls, including interior finish, are 21" in thicimess, it is of note
.that the remaining two walls which help support these corner cells are a. .-
full four inches thicker. Emredded in the plaster walls of the cells 1s‘i
~an-iron grating, and fixtures for chains are attached to +the. floor.’ Ex—
‘centing these cells, which are themselves an exhibit, the entlre second
" floor is now used for dlsolay purposes. : o o f‘f1

room which runs the full length of the building and was probably used for.
storage. In the cellar,. within the west -chimney Aoundatlon, are a flre—f-5
place and several ovens--one being a heehive oven; this cellar does not -
appear to have reen partitioned except for the fleldstone wall needed to
support the cells in the southeast corner apove it. '

o D  (See Continuat;ioh"_smet'j.) o

A

A4 window in the northern of these two chambers retains its original twelve--
Maximum security was provided by a two-cell jail block locaﬁéd.ih'il“

heat, light, water, or sanitary facilities; air is provided by a small -~ |- |,
narrow slit through the exterior masonry.wall and a peephole in the iron - °| ~

door. Under the floor of the two cells are two courses of 8"x8" timhers. ;|7
superimposed one upon the other, to prevent escape. These timbers, like. 7| .

Vo e T e T e e T T e B s gty 2a 0

The attic or thlrd I‘lom- consisks' of a smngle, unparultloﬁed flnlgheo ; 'ﬂ‘*
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SPECIFIC DATYEIS) (If Applicable and Known) 1828, 1859

ARCAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Chock One or More as Apprapriatc) .
) ' - . [} Urban Planning

Aborigina!l : . O Education "'[[] Political :

O Prehistoric O Engineering . oo [0 Religion/Phi. . [ Other (Specity) .
O Histerie - [7] industry ' lesophy Y L.Q_G_al_h.iﬁi&_L

[:]_ Agriculture -‘ . :Q tnvention Y [O Science R '

[0 Architecture = -+ 7. Landscapa [ Sculpture’
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[ Commerce o [j Lireratura - LR isarian

[ Communicatiens [ Military -3 Theorer s "' B

[J Conservation O Music R Transporfmioo '

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE : . . . y .
The building now occupied by the Bristol Historical and Preservati-

-t on Society lies within the heart of the historic center of Bristol on a

narrow iane (Court Street) which runs from Hope Street to High Street,

ing erscted in 1817 and now entered on the National Repisier. Also with-
in half a-block of the old Bristol County.Jail is the former Bristol Post
Office and Customs house de31gnod by Ammi B. Younp in 1857, now ‘owned by

former 3a11 is. 1mportant to its immediate neighborhood and makes a 51g—f”‘
nificant contribution to the total environment: it is an unusual build-

is-an Outstandlng feature.

In 1936, tho Brlstol HlstOTlCal Sooletv was formed and the flrst
—Offlclal meeting held in December, at the Pristol County Courthouse.. ;45?

cured as a permanent meeting-place, but this building burned in July,

1957, causing damage to the society's nossessions and papers.  Not long
afterwards the old Bristol County Jail was vacated, and the society was'

able to obtain from the State of Rhode Island a twenty-year lease of.

tre building and grounds. -The first meeting there was- held on May 3,

by many interested ciltizens--especially Norman Herreshoff member of a
family long rooted in the oommunlty. oo e S

The organlzatlon whloh is now called the Bristol Historical and

to its building, including the creation of a meetlng—room, a reference -f
library etc. The society is now interested in restoring the bulldlng to”.
its original appearance as far as is !feasible.'’ Progects proposed in-
clude restoration of the Greek Revival front entrance with sidelights and’
transom; replacement of all sash to the twelve-over-eight and twelve-
over-twelve original patterns; removal of an added brick ‘chimney at the
rear; repointing of stonework; and , flnally, reStoratlon of the fireplace
and brick ovens 1n the basement L . RS o :

-

(See Continuétion:Shéot 3;Jf'

two important and old thoroughfares. Facing the head of Court Street on ‘1
the Town Common is the Bristol County Courthouse, a Federal-period build-

the local Y. M, C, A. and also entered on the Nati'onal Reglster. The ;*""

1959, and subsequently help towards.restoration and adaptation was given“;"

Preservation Society has had’ to make functional alterations and repalrs“,3’

ing-type in basically unaltered condition and now is accessible to. the- :mufiff
general puhlic. One of a limited number of extant Bristol struotures con~j{{;‘
structed of pranite rubtble- and not stuccoed, the charaoter of 1ts walls n

In 1952, the first floor of the Rogers Free' Library building was pro- -5'¢s ;f”
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7. . Description. B o
Constructed of massive cut granlte blocks, the 1859 rear addition f
has hrarred windows a full two stories in heipht. Within its space arve..eon- E
tained two galleries of cells, {ive on each level. The cells on the upper ;
level are reached by a cast-iron stair. Access here from the 1828 jail i
was gained by a solid steel door hung in the common wall joining older :
and newer struoturou, and there is an outside door in the’ new - wing's west
wall. . ) Lo L e :
: S T . L Co i
8. Significance. .
C o , o ‘ 5
Bacanse of the architectnral gquality of this edifice and its import- }
ance to its enviroomment; becanse it is an ungual bullding-type in hasiec- i
ally unaltered constlon and hecause it today serves an orpanization , ;
whose gozls are to prese*veA-throuFb its ‘exhibits--elements from the pasi; . 2
to foster education and research through its historical library; and to . - : 4
encourage the restoration of local historic properties by ‘making individu-- |~ = = §
-al owners and the general public aware of .what surrounds them, one advo- B AR 4
cates the former Bristol County Jail and the present Bristol Histwrical'. IR
and PreserVatlon SOC1ety as worthy of Natlonal Reglster status and pro—:; o )
tectlon.' ; Y e N Lo - B S i
_ N S Lt e LT H-;_"ﬂ' 2
- i
. .
2
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FORM PREPARE

MAME AND TITLE:

Lombard John Pozzl, Survevor~Researcher‘” 

ORGANIZATION DATE "

Rhode Island Hlstorlcal Preservatlon Comm;551on P ' March lO 19?3
STREET AND NUMBER: . ’ : :
John Brown Eouse, 52 Power Street

SITY OR TOWN: sTaTE ’ ' ' R CODE

PT‘OVlde"}ce o Rhode Island 02906

As the designated‘ State Liaison Officer for the' Na-
tional Historic Pre;uvatwn Act of 1966 {Public l.aw
'.“9-665) 1 hereby nominate this property for mclusxon
in the Naticnal Reg,xster and certify that it has been \
evaluated according to the criteria. and.proccdu rr.;s set-
forth by the ‘\'ational Park Service. ’ The recommended

level of sxgmfu_ance of th1s nommatxon ist -
National [ _St.ste, E Local = ..

‘Date‘ Y . L -
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DRAWN BY LOMBARY JOHN pozzl 1975
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FORM 10-301 A NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

e NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTYPHOTOGRAPHFORM
(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with photograph)

.'. \r "...

COMMON AND/OR HISTORIC NUMERIC CODE (Aselgned by NPS)
istol Historical and Bristol County Jail

“paservation Socletly
2. LOCATION
STATE COUNTY TOWN

“hoda Island Bristol Bristol
STREET AND NUMBER

18 Court Street
3. PHOTO REFERENCE

DATE NEGATIVE FILED AT

PHOGTO CREDIT

4. IDENTIFICATION
CESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC.

?ipst— and second-floor plans of the jail, drawn by Lombard John Pozzi, 1973.
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
FORM 10-301 A NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

A NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPH FORM
(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with photograph)

1. NAME

COMMON AND/OR HISTORIC NUMERIC CODE (Assigned by NPS)
Bristol Historical and Bristol County Jail
Preservation Society

2. LOCATION 3.

STATE COUNTY _ Town -
Rhode Island Bristol Bristol

STREET AND NUMBER
118 Court Street

3. PHOTO REFERENCE

PHOTO CREDIT DATE > NEGATIVE FILED AT Rhode Island
Elizareth S. Warren March, 1973 Historical Presrvation Com-

mission, John Brown H

4. IDENTIFICATION 52, Poyer Street, Providence,

CESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC.
s Rhode Island, 02906
Exterior viewd from the northwest.
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
FORM 10-301 A NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

P NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPH FORM
(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with photograph)

1. NAME

‘ConMMOoN AND/OR HISTORIC . NUMERIC CODE (Asalgned by NPS)
"ristol Historical and Bristol Countv Jail
Preservation Society
2. LOCATION
STATE COUNTY TOWN -
Zhode Island Bristol ) Bristol
STREET AND NUMBER
)8 Court Street
3. PHOTO REFERENCE
PHOTO CREDIT DATE NEGATIVE FILED AT Rhode Island
24 h; 1 . A
Elizabeth S. Warren .| March, 1973 Historical Preservation Com-
mission, John Brown House,
4. IDENTIFICATION 52 Power Street, Providence,
DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC. RhOde ISland, 02906

Detail of fireplace wall in front parlour (nor@hwest chamber of first floqr).
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'Form 10-301 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Uuly 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTY MAP FORM
(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with map)
[1. NAME

commMon: Former Bristol County Jail
AND/OR HISTORIC:

STATE

Rhode Island

COUNTY

Bristol

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

DATE

(2., LOCATION

STREET AND NUM BER:

48 Court Street

CITY OR TOWN:

Bristol

STATE:

CODE [COUNTY:

044

Rhode Island

Bristol

CODE

001

scaLe: 1:24,000

DATE: 19_ 5 5
f. REQUIREMENT

TO BE INCLUDED ON ALL MAPS
1. Property broundaries where required.
2. North arrow.

3. Latitude and longitude reference.
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
FORM 10-301 A NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

proet NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPH FORM
(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with photograph)

1. NAME \
COMMON AND/OR HISTORIC NUMERIC CODE (Assigned by NPS)
- . ] ll
Rristol Historical and Bristol CPunty Jail
Preservation Society
2. LOCATION
STATE COUNTY TOWN
Rhode Island Bristol Bristol
STREET AND NUMBER
18 Court Street
3. PHOTO REFERENCE
PHOTO CREDIT DATE NEGATIVE FILED ATRhode Island
Elizabeth S. Warren March, 1973 Historical Preseravtion Com-
: mission, John Brown House,
4, IDENTIFICATION 52 Power Street, Providence,
DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC. Rhode Island, 02906

Tnterior view if the 1859 cell block, showing planked corridor, original iron
railing and tall windows and looking south.
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